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          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you for

          3  coming today. Thank you. My name is Joe Addabbo, I'm

          4  Chair of the Parks and Recreation Committee. I

          5  welcome you all to the Committee today to the

          6  oversight hearing.

          7                 I'm honored to co-chair this meeting

          8  with my friend and colleague here, Bill DeBlasio,

          9  from the General Welfare, who will speak after

         10  myself.

         11                 I also want to thank the staff from

         12  the Parks and Recreation Committee, Harvey Fertig,

         13  who is to my right, Frank Neeley, and Jim Overcheree

         14  (phonetic).

         15                 While the issue that we're going to

         16  be discussing today, how the City is dealing with

         17  the workers in the Transitional Jobs Program, fall

         18  really within the purview of the General Welfare

         19  Committee, the fact is most of these workers have

         20  been placed in our Parks and Recreation areas, and

         21  it raises concerns that the Committee has regarding

         22  the program.

         23                 Over the years the City has been

         24  depleted in our ranks within the Parks Department,

         25  and these vacancies have been filled with the Parks
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          2  opportunity program workers. We would like to know

          3  if the City is making a good faith effort to provide

          4  a career track for these employees and so that they

          5  may be gainfully employed in the future.

          6                 Also, we would like to know if the

          7  workers have a future in this program, the training

          8  that is going throughout the program, whether this

          9  program will be decreased over the near future, and

         10  as far as the future of the program, does the Parks

         11  and Recreation have a plan to maintain the high

         12  standards for our parks.

         13                 We look forward to working with the

         14  Parks Department in this respect in finding

         15  solutions that benefit the workers, their families,

         16  the City parks and the community at large.

         17                 At this point I'm going to have our

         18  colleague, Bill DeBlasio, Chairman of the General

         19  Welfare Committee, make his statement, as well.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         21  much, Mr. Chairman. It really is a pleasure to have

         22  our two Committees together.

         23                 Chairman Addabbo and I have already

         24  established a very close-working relationship, and

         25  he is one of the bright stars of this bright body,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            5

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  so you will, everyone will see a lot of good work

          3  coming out of the Parks Committee under his

          4  leadership.

          5                 You know, I want to say, in these

          6  times we're facing economically, I don't know what

          7  would be more bread and butter and more basic to our

          8  City than making sure our parks are in decent shape,

          9  that they're clean, that our children can benefit

         10  from them. We all know it's going to be harder than

         11  ever under this budget, and I know the Parks

         12  Committee is going to be very vigilant to make sure

         13  that anything that could benefit our parks

         14  continues, and that's why we're here today talking

         15  about the job opportunity program. It really has

         16  been, not only a good program for the workers in it,

         17  but a good program for our parks and for, therefore,

         18  all the families of New York City.

         19                 Now, I rarely take this podium to

         20  praise the Giuliani Administration, but this is one

         21  moment where I will. They began the Job Opportunity

         22  Program, they used federal, welfare and job training

         23  funds to pay workers to deliver key services, like

         24  keeping our parks clean and replace a welfare check

         25  with a paycheck.
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          2                 Now, I will note, that does seem

          3  suspiciously like the Transitional Jobs Bill which

          4  passed this body and was vetoed by Mayor Giuliani

          5  and we overrode the veto and the Mayor did not

          6  implement that bill. But whatever you call it,

          7  whoever wants to claim authorship, we're glad that

          8  that's what actually happened. And as height, the

          9  Job Opportunity Program placed about 3,500 workers

         10  in the Parks Department and others in other

         11  agencies, such as the Department of Transportation,

         12  what was very notable about this program, it was one

         13  of the few times during the previous administration

         14  where there was a focus on placing public assistance

         15  recipients into living wage jobs. These jobs paid

         16  comparable wages to the unionized workforce, roughly

         17  between $9 and $11 an hour, with benefits, and some

         18  of us would say, a criticism we would say is there

         19  was not a provision made for some access to training

         20  and education while people had these job opportunity

         21  program jobs, but still we're very happy it was a

         22  living wage and it was the beginning of a path to

         23  long term work opportunities.

         24                 Well, now the Administration, the new

         25  Administration, based on actions taken by the
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          2  Giuliani Administration in the last days of its

          3  time, appears to be backing off this successful

          4  model by shortening the jobs to six months and

          5  contracting with a private temp company, meaning

          6  that the workers will get paid less, will not have

          7  the protections of City workers, and funds that

          8  could be used to provide services are going to a

          9  private company.

         10                 We would like to see the previous

         11  approach to the job opportunity program maintained

         12  or expanded, in fact. Year-long jobs, this is what

         13  we're looking for, year-long jobs so people can

         14  provide quality services to our parks and other

         15  agencies and learn skills, having people on the City

         16  payroll so they're fully protected as City employees

         17  and our public dollars go directly to public

         18  services, not to private companies, comparable wages

         19  paid for comparable work, and at least some access

         20  to training and education so people can move in the

         21  future to jobs that pay a living wage and give them

         22  permanent income.

         23                 So, our basic message today is let's

         24  not take a step backwards, let's not turn a

         25  successful program into something worse, and
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          2  especially when it comes to our parks, let's make

          3  sure our parks are clean and safe, particularly in

          4  these difficult times.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: At this point in

          7  time I'd like to introduce those colleagues of mine,

          8  Council members who are up on the Committee.

          9                 To my right we have Dennis Gallagher;

         10  to my left we have Jose Serrano, we have Helen

         11  Foster and Eric Dilan.

         12                 At this point we're going to swear in

         13  our commissioners, or representatives of the

         14  Commissioner's office, for their testimony.

         15                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

         16  hands.

         17                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

         18  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         19  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I do.

         21                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  DIAMOND: Yes.

         23                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

         24  and affiliations for the record.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: My name
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          2  is Robert Garafola. I'm the Deputy Commissioner for

          3  Management and Budget for the New York City Parks

          4  Department.

          5                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  DIAMOND: Seth Diamond, Executive Deputy Commissioner

          7  for HRA's Family Independence Administration.

          8                 MR. NEWMAN: Please begin your

          9  testimony.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Okay.

         11  Chairman Addabbo, members of the Parks and

         12  Recreation Committee, Chairman DeBlasio, members of

         13  the General Welfare Committee, I'm pleased to be

         14  here today to provide you with more information on

         15  the Parks Opportunity Program.

         16                 Since March 2001, Parks has been

         17  participating at a subsidized employment program

         18  known Citywide as the Job Opportunity Program, JOP.

         19  And within Parks is the Parks Opportunity Program.

         20                 Through this program, TANF, the

         21  people on Temporary Assistance for Needy Families,

         22  recipients nearing the end of their federally

         23  mandated five-year time limit are referred to

         24  subsidized temporary jobs with the Parks Department.

         25                 While POP employees are in the
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          2  program, they're expected to continue looking for

          3  full-time, long-term employment, many in the private

          4  sector.

          5                 Participants are required to attend

          6  job training to either our JAC and PACT programs or

          7  ESP vendors that contract with HRA.

          8                 When the programs started, POP

          9  employees were on six-month seasonal lines. These

         10  lines are extended to 11 and a half months,

         11  following the attacks on September 11th.

         12                 As of April 23rd, 2002, Parks has

         13  2,082 POP and participants working in 11-and-a-half

         14  month positions. City title available to POP

         15  employees includes City seasonal aides, City park

         16  workers and playground assistant.

         17                 Since November 2001, no additional

         18  POP employees have been hired. The first group of 45

         19  employees left the Parks Department on February

         20  28th, 2002, and departures have continued.

         21                 Participants will work closely with

         22  the Parks Department supervisors and staff to

         23  develop the job readiness skills and qualifications

         24  necessary for permanent positions outside the Parks

         25  Department.
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          2                 Parks has its own job training

          3  program, called the Job Assistance Program Center,

          4  JAC, and the Parks Career Training Program, PACT.

          5  Together these programs have placed more than 2,500

          6  people in WEPs and POP participants in full-time

          7  jobs, permanent jobs, with the average hourly rate

          8  of $8.40.

          9                 PACT provides extensive training in

         10  clerical, custodial fix-it, horticulture and

         11  security and driver license operation.

         12                 Participants also attend workshops in

         13  graffiti removal, plant identification, plant

         14  identification, tree pruning, pest control, basic

         15  electrical and plumbing skills, floor care,

         16  sheetrock installation, and small machine operation.

         17                 PACT security training includes the

         18  New York State eight-hour pre-assignment training,

         19  Red Cross training, CPR and First Aid, as well as 35

         20  hours of additional training in the Security

         21  Academy.

         22                 JAC also has a number of partnerships

         23  with Social Service organizations, such as Dress for

         24  Success, New York and Career Gear, which provides

         25  free interview clothing to men and women,
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          2  respectively.

          3                 Also, we work with Street-wise

          4  Partners, a mentoring program with Pricewaterhouse

          5  Coopers and Community Voice Mail. In addition, JAC

          6  runs its own clerical and customer service

          7  academies.

          8                 Participants in both of these

          9  programs have the opportunity to attend on-site GED

         10  and ESL classes, beginning English and also

         11  preparation in math skills.

         12                 These classes expanded through JAC

         13  and  PACT's partnership with the Board of Education.

         14  In addition, both problems offer job readiness

         15  training in resume writing, interview techniques,

         16  customer service skills, computer skills, budgeting

         17  and time management.

         18                 Employment specialists and also

         19  counselors work one-on-one and in groups with

         20  participants on topics such as coping mechanisms,

         21  retention in their jobs, cooperating with their

         22  supervisor and fellow employees, and barriers to

         23  employment.

         24                 PACT and JAC also organize job fairs,

         25  recruitment days to help POP participants connect
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          2  with potential employees. On February 5th, 40

          3  companies and over 1,000 people came to one of our

          4  Parks job fairs at the Carmine Rec Center, and on

          5  April 10th we had another job fair in which we had

          6  30 companies and over 400 participants come and

          7  participate.

          8                 Parks also holds a number of

          9  recruitment days where a company or two come in, are

         10  invited to conduct a presentation, interview a group

         11  of potential candidates and screen them for jobs.

         12                 We feel that both JAC and PACT

         13  programs are extremely valuable to the maintenance

         14  and operation of our playgrounds, as is the POP

         15  program, and in terms of the maintenance conditions

         16  of our large parks in the City of New York, and this

         17  has helped improve our overall condition

         18  significantly over the last few years, and as a

         19  result of this New Yorkers are benefitting from this

         20  program.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  DIAMOND: I don't have any prepared remarks but I'm

         24  available for any of your questions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'll start off
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          2  the questions before opening up to the Committee

          3  members.

          4                 We all know that the program has been

          5  successful to this point, and we could see it in the

          6  condition of our parks, and I don't think that's the

          7  question. The question I would like to propose to

          8  you is I'd like to get a little more specific; how

          9  many employees through the program have been

         10  allocated; how are they allocated; the numbers that

         11  are allocated to each agency; okay? And regardless

         12  to the training, what do you think is the future,

         13  what will you see is the future?

         14                 If the money is there, and we know

         15  the money is there from the government, we know that

         16  the funding is there, what do you see as the future

         17  of this program?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Well,

         19  currently we have around 2,800 people in the Parks

         20  Department. We hit a high around 3,500, that was

         21  around February, and, you know, we're actually

         22  negotiating with HRA right now for the continuation

         23  of the program.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And the future

         25  of the program?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: That's

          3  correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: In your opinion,

          5  what is the future of this program? Because, again,

          6  what we're starting to see is a cutback in a very

          7  successful program, and that's what's concerning us.

          8                 We see a program that finally has

          9  done some good that actually does work, and what

         10  we're seeing coming down the line is a cutback. And

         11  the question is why, and what do you think is the

         12  future of this program?

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  DIAMOND: Well, I think, as Mr. Garafola said, we're

         15  currently in discussions with the Parks Department

         16  about the future of the program. It involves an

         17  agreement between our two agencies, plus there are

         18  budget implications that have to be resolved in the

         19  larger budget discussions and we're continuing to

         20  talk about the future.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And let's keep

         22  in mind, again, when we talk about budget, this is a

         23  program that is funded outside the City budget,

         24  correct? This is basically money, TANF money, that's

         25  there.
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  DIAMOND: That's not entirely true. There is some

          4  City cost involved, but there are many needs for the

          5  TANF money that have to be weighed in deciding

          6  what's the best way to spend that so that we can

          7  meet all the demands for services that we want to

          8  provide to people moving from welfare from work.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And, again, our

         10  concern is that the TANF money is there, but then it

         11  should be spent wisely, that this program is, again,

         12  not pushed to the side, or not taken to its full

         13  capacity, that the TANF money is there, let's use it

         14  properly for the workers, for their families.

         15                 (Audience applause.)

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We appreciate

         17  your enthusiasm, but please help us keep this

         18  hearing moving along.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You can hear the

         21  tone of the Committee, again, we have the money,

         22  it's a successful program, we are very concerned

         23  about it being cut back to a less successful program

         24  or a less utilized program, something that has

         25  worked and it has worked in realistic terms, not
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          2  only for jobs, again, the workers and their

          3  families, but the condition of our City, Parks,

          4  DOT-related items.

          5                 So, again, I think that's something

          6  that has to be considered strongly. And this

          7  Committee will continue to do its oversight, if need

          8  be, just to make sure, again, we are utilizing this

          9  program correctly.

         10                 Any questions from Committee members?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me just do

         12  some quick questions and then let's go on to

         13  members.

         14                 Before I ask some questions, I want

         15  to thank Council Member Foster, because I want the

         16  history to be clear, she is the person who

         17  introduced the resolution that led to this hearing

         18  today, so I want to thank her for her foresight.

         19                 Welcome, Commissioners. And I want to

         20  say, Commissioner Diamond, thank you for your

         21  testimony with the General Welfare Committee on the

         22  access training and education bill, and I just want

         23  to say a friendly reminder, we would very much

         24  appreciate the follow-up information that we

         25  requested.
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          2                 First, it's an immediate question off

          3  of your last few statements, Commissioner Diamond.

          4                 You said there is a cost to the City,

          5  and I'm not surprised at that statement, but can you

          6  give us a little sense of how you calculate the cost

          7  to the City when it is largely federally funded?

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  DIAMOND: Well, there is -- it is largely federal

         10  money, but there are some money that requires City

         11  match that is used to pay for the program. Of the

         12  total cost, approximately 16 or 17 percent are City

         13  costs and the rest are borne by the State and the

         14  federal government.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Is that

         16  administrative, or is that you're saying because of

         17  a match requirement?

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  DIAMOND: Because of a match requirement. For

         20  example, the TANF money requires that the City pay a

         21  certain amount before it can earn the money that

         22  comes from the State and federal government. So, to

         23  the extent that TANF dollars are involved there is

         24  City requirement, and we're using a mix of funding

         25  streams, some of which are pure federal money, some
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          2  of which require City contribution, so that there

          3  are some City cost involved.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. Let me

          5  ask you a few questions.

          6                 Now, I just want to make sure I have

          7  my facts straight.  On the current year, '02, it's

          8  funded with 68 million of Welfare to work funds,

          9  which pays for a total number of 3,500 Parks

         10  workers, I don't have the figures for other

         11  agencies, and that these welfare to work funds going

         12  forward, because of the nature of the federal

         13  legislation which set up the funding stream are

         14  going to be limited. It's not a recurring funding

         15  stream. Is all that right? And if not, please amend

         16  it.

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  DIAMOND: Well, on the second part, the nature of the

         19  limited funding stream is obviously one of our

         20  concerns when we're talking about the continuation

         21  of the program. That's one of the things that has to

         22  be taken into account as we discuss what we can do

         23  going forward.

         24                 In terms of the costs to date, I have

         25  a number of about $30 million for the current year.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thirty million

          3  welfare to work funds?

          4                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  DIAMOND: Thirty million in total.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. We'll try

          7  and figure out where we have a discrepancy.

          8                 I understand the two agencies are

          9  negotiating, but let me just ask you the

         10  definitional question at this moment; does the

         11  Administration intend to continue the job

         12  opportunity program for Fiscal Year '03 at the same

         13  funding level?

         14                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  DIAMOND: Again, both the funding level and the

         16  nature of the program is something that's under

         17  discussion, both between our agencies and in the

         18  larger negotiations on the budget, and I can't say

         19  anything further at this point.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Do you have any

         21  sense, despite the fact that you are in negotiation,

         22  of how many workers you intend to involve either in

         23  Job Opportunity Program or something like it?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  DIAMOND: The parameters of the programs are the
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          2  kinds of things that we're discussing right now.

          3  Nothing further on that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right, let

          5  me ask you a few other related questions.

          6                 Now, my understanding is that you

          7  have for this type of program about 59 million a

          8  year in TANF discretionary funds that would be

          9  available but that the State needs to approve, or

         10  the State needs to get a sign-off for; is that your

         11  understanding?

         12                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  DIAMOND: I don't have that information. That may be

         14  right, but I'd have to get back to you on that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, we'd

         16  appreciate again any time when something needs

         17  further research, if you could get back to this

         18  Committee promptly we would very much appreciate it.

         19                 Is it something you could give us now

         20  even in broad stroke, and then we can have a

         21  follow-up? Can you give us a sense of how TANF

         22  discretionary funds had been used up to now in the

         23  current fiscal year?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  DIAMOND: Well, the TANF funds are the basic funds
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          2  that fund a number of different employment programs

          3  for the entire program, and those funds find

          4  everything from the basic benefits that we provide

          5  to people to employment and training programs to

          6  some of the new programs that we want to introduce

          7  on retention and career advancement.

          8                 So, how those funds will be

          9  allocated, what programs we want to pursue, those

         10  are all discussions that we're going into now, in

         11  light of -- and the POP program is certainly one of

         12  the programs on the table that is under review.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I didn't say

         14  that clear enough. I'm talking about the current

         15  fiscal year in this case. My apology.

         16                 In the current fiscal year, can you

         17  roughly, and I know you may not have all the details

         18  at your command right now, but could you roughly

         19  break out for us how HRA distributed the TANF funds

         20  that it did tap into? What was the rough -- how much

         21  went to placement, how much went to training? Would

         22  you have some breakout?

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  DIAMOND: I don't have that now, no.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right. Let
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          2  me ask you, and, again, we would appreciate that in

          3  follow-up, let me ask you about Temp Force.

          4                 What is the current status of the

          5  contract, in this fiscal year, the contract with

          6  Temp Force.

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  DIAMOND: Okay, let me just be clear on the Temp

          9  Force contract and the role it plays.

         10                 The Temp Force contract is not used

         11  in any way to reduce the term of the people who are

         12  working at the Parks Department for 11-and-a-half

         13  months. The current employees will complete their,

         14  assuming they continue to be satisfactory employees,

         15  will complete their term of 11-and-a-half months.

         16  There is no effort to reduce that term to move them

         17  before their term ends to anything else, or to

         18  replace them with any kind of other workers.

         19                 The Temp Force contract is a separate

         20  contract used for a different purpose that provides

         21  temporary jobs to people on public assistance, to

         22  people not on public assistance, to work at other

         23  agencies other than the Parks Department. So, it's a

         24  separate discussion from this, and it's not mixed in

         25  any way with the replacement of the POP workers.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, let me

          3  make sure I got this right.

          4                 So, anyone who is currently involved

          5  in the POP program you're saying is not going to be

          6  affected by Temp Force in any way at this moment?

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  DIAMOND: The only way they would be affected is if

          9  at the end of their Parks' time, if they still do

         10  not have a job then they might be offered an

         11  opportunity with Temp Force, but that would be upon

         12  the completion of their 11-and-a-half months with

         13  the Parks Department.

         14                 There is no effort to end the

         15  11-and-a-half months before that time to cut into

         16  the service or to replace Parks' workers with Temp

         17  Force workers.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And which

         19  agencies do Temp Force, workers who go through Temp

         20  Force currently work with?

         21                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  DIAMOND: A number of different agencies, including

         23  HRA, the Department of Probation, the Board of

         24  Education, HPD, Department of Aging. Those are the

         25  major ones.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And can you

          3  give roughly how many people have gone through Temp

          4  Force in this fiscal year?

          5                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  DIAMOND: I also neglected, the Police Department has

          7  some Temp Force people.

          8                 There's about 1,200 people, 1,191 at

          9  last count, who are currently working on the Temp

         10  Force payroll.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Almost 1,200.

         12                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  DIAMOND: And these are all, just to clarify, we

         14  could call them transitional jobs, subsidized jobs,

         15  these are all in the public sector with public

         16  support.  These are not going out into the private

         17  sector in any way?

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  DIAMOND: We have other programs with the private

         20  sector to subsidize jobs, but these are, the jobs

         21  we're talking about with Temp Force, they're doing

         22  their day-to-day work in public agencies, yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, let me

         24  ask you, I just have two more quick questions, and

         25  then other Committee members I'm sure do as well.
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          2                 Our understanding is the wage level

          3  significantly decreased that under the Job

          4  Opportunity Program, Parks Opportunity Program, the

          5  wage level was between nine and eleven an hour with

          6  benefits, comparable to City unionized workers, and

          7  that under Temp Force is substantially less; first,

          8  is that true? Second, is it because of the

          9  administrative costs associated with Temp Force that

         10  we are seeing people have a wage reduction?

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  DIAMOND: Again, no one is having a wage reduction

         13  during their time at Parks. They complete their full

         14  eleven and a half months at whatever they're hired

         15  into, and Parks can talk more specifically about the

         16  wages, and whatever that wage is, their wages are

         17  not decreased during their entire time at Parks.

         18                 At the end of their time with Parks,

         19  there are a lot of efforts made while they're at

         20  Parks to help them get jobs. Mr. Garafola described

         21  several of them. HRA has also put in place several

         22  of them.

         23                 Among the efforts we make is to offer

         24  somebody who has completed their eleven and a half

         25  months with Parks and has not been able to find any
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          2  other job, despite all these efforts, we may offer

          3  them an opportunity to continue working at Temp

          4  Force, so they can continue employment. If they want

          5  to seek something else, obviously they're free to do

          6  that, we would continue to work with them to do

          7  that.

          8                 So, Temp Force for the Parks' people

          9  has been sort of a safety net for some of them so

         10  that after they complete the parks, if, again,

         11  despite all the efforts that we've put in they're

         12  not able to find private employment, we're able to

         13  provide them with something so they can continue to

         14  be employed.

         15                 Those wages are slightly less than

         16  the Parks Department, but, again, it's not meant to

         17  replace the Parks Department, it's not to cut into

         18  the Parks Department program, it is meant as a

         19  separate program that is generally run for people

         20  apart from the Parks Department, and if some people

         21  from the Parks Department complete their time and

         22  still don't have a job, then they're able to use

         23  that as a safety net so that they don't have to go

         24  unemployed.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And just making
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          2  clear on this, is the wage reduction -- I understand

          3  it may not affect the people currently completing

          4  their time in Parks Opportunity Program, but is the

          5  wage reduction in part because of added

          6  administrative costs associated with using Temp

          7  Force?

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  DIAMOND: I don't know that it's a wage reduction.

         10  The temporary contract was bid as a separate

         11  process, the wage that was asked is comparable to

         12  what temporary employees receive given their

         13  functions, and given the overall markets, it's $7.95

         14  an hour. It's a different kind of function and a

         15  different kind of service than the Parks Department

         16  job, so I don't think you can compare the two.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Lastly, I guess

         18  this is a "if it ain't broke, don't fix it"

         19  question. It seems to me, from everything I've heard

         20  today already that the Parks Opportunity Program was

         21  a great success. Although I understand we're in

         22  tough budget times, et cetera, the structural

         23  question is why go from a structural approach that

         24  seemed to be working to this new Temp Force approach

         25  if there's --
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          2                 (Applause).

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Now, you've got

          4  to let the Chairman get his question in here.

          5                 I mean, look, the Giuliani

          6  Administration, Commissioner, we can talk frankly,

          7  the Giuliani Administration, no one has accused them

          8  of being bleeding heart liberals and they I think

          9  felt this was an effective approach. So, I guess

         10  what I'm asking, if it was effective, granted hard

         11  times were now in, but if it was effective, why

         12  would we even be considering moving away from that

         13  structural approach?

         14                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  DIAMOND: I think that's where there's some

         16  confusion, that we're not talking about substituting

         17  Parks workers with Temp Force workers, that's a

         18  separate program for a separate purpose in different

         19  agencies.

         20                 To the extent we would continue the

         21  program, and that's what's currently under

         22  discussion, it would not involve using Temp Force

         23  workers, it would involve using Parks' seasonal

         24  programs similar to what they've established in the

         25  past. That has to be negotiated, again, in light of
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          2  the overall City's budget situation and operational

          3  issues at both Parks and HRA, but we're not talking

          4  about substituting Temp Force workers for Parks'

          5  workers, they're two different approaches, two

          6  different -- the workers are placed in two different

          7  agencies, two different kinds of agencies, and there

          8  are two different kinds of jobs, and you should not

          9  mix the two, I think you are unnecessarily creating

         10  confusion.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I appreciate

         12  that and I don't want to create confusion, so I'll

         13  just close by saying you're saying that the

         14  continuation of the Parks Opportunity Program is a

         15  possibility, that is still on the table. Nothing has

         16  been ruled out. You are looking at the possibility

         17  of continuing the Parks Opportunity Program?

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  DIAMOND: Yes, it's currently under discussion.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member

         22  Helen Foster.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Good morning.

         24  I have a couple of questions.

         25                 Explain to me, and do it baby steps,
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          2  who comprises the Parks Opportunity workers?

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  DIAMOND: In what terms do you mean?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Who are the

          6  workers?

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  DIAMOND: They are largely former public assistance

          9  recipients who were close to their five-year limit

         10  on receiving TANF benefits who had been successfully

         11  complying in a Work Experience or other employment

         12  activity, they've now moved to the Parks Department.

         13  Most of them, 85 percent of them, when they are

         14  employed by the Parks Department, are no longer on

         15  public assistance.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay, so

         17  they're no longer on public assistance, and,

         18  therefore, the work that they do generates a salary.

         19  So that public assistance money they're no longer

         20  getting, correct?

         21                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  DIAMOND: In most cases, yes.

         23                 (Audience outburst.)

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Come on.

         25  Listen, I'm serious here, I want everyone to hear me
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          2  on this, please.

          3                 I think you understand the members of

          4  the Committee are very, very sympathetic, but we

          5  have an atmosphere we try and create of respect for

          6  everyone, we respect the people from the

          7  Administration who come here before us, they're

          8  giving us an honest dialogue, let's respect that.

          9                 So, please, it's nice to clap very

         10  briefly, but we can't have -- we're not doing a

         11  rally, that will be another time. Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay. And keep

         13  your passion, but let us just get through the

         14  questions.

         15                 So, they're no longer on public

         16  assistance, and they're now receiving a paycheck

         17  through whatever work they do as a POP worker,

         18  correct?

         19                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  DIAMOND: In most cases, yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay. And what

         22  cases is that not the case?

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  DIAMOND: Depending on their individual situation, if

         25  they have a large family size or some other
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          2  budgeting situation they may continue to receive

          3  some public assistance.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Some public

          5  assistance.

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  DIAMOND: Correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay. So, the

          9  money they get as a POP worker will then either

         10  replace the public assistance or subsidize what

         11  they're getting?

         12                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  DIAMOND: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay.

         15                 So, on page two of your testimony --

         16  I'm sorry, how do I say your last name?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:

         18  Gara-fola.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Garafola?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: The third

         22  paragraph, you said 45 POP employees left, and then

         23  186 departed and 398 are scheduled to depart.

         24                 Left departed and departing, what

         25  does that mean? They've finished their 11 months,
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          2  and, so, they are no longer working so they've left

          3  because they've found other jobs? So, I just need to

          4  define left and departed for me, please.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: The

          6  left is their lines have ended, the 11-and-a-half

          7  month line with the Parks Department has been

          8  completed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay.

         10                 So, those 186 and the 398 are going

         11  to depart and then upcoming departures are those who

         12  will have finished their 11 and a half months?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: That's

         14  correct. And a number of people do get jobs during

         15  this period, but these are the people who have not

         16  gotten the jobs, or we project haven't gotten jobs

         17  yet.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: And do we have

         19  any in those numbers, either left or departing

         20  numbers, that haven't finished 11 and a half months?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: To my

         22  understanding, no. The position is 11 and a half

         23  months and most people do complete it, unless for

         24  some reason they decide they don't want to

         25  themselves. But as far as we know, they stay for the
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          2  full 11 and a half months.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: And the

          4  numbers, I don't know if you have them, but after

          5  the 11 and a half months, then by that time are they

          6  usually employed somewhere else, or what happens

          7  after 11 and a half months?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Well,

          9  approximately 30 percent of the people that were --

         10  actually, 25 to 30 percent of the people do get jobs

         11  in private sector jobs or City or other jobs in City

         12  agencies.

         13                 The rest of the people do not have

         14  jobs, and they would go in unemployment and do that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: So, let me

         16  just make sure I understand it.

         17                 After 11 and a half months, we have a

         18  couple of categories: either you have a job and you

         19  move on, or you don't have a job, or you go to

         20  unemployment?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: And

         22  during that period of time we're working with people

         23  to get jobs, as well.

         24                 Some people leave before the 11 and a

         25  half months, if they can successfully get a job, we
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          2  work closely with them with job developers and job

          3  counselors to get them jobs and that's what our job

          4  training programs are for.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: What's the

          6  number, if you have it, of those people that finish

          7  11 and a half months, that get jobs and mainstreamed

          8  into the job market?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:

         10  Currently we've done about 126 people have gotten

         11  jobs. Most of them, I'd say about 80 percent of them

         12  in private sector jobs.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: A hundred and

         14  twenty-six of 3,500?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: No. I

         16  would say 25 percent of the people who have departed

         17  so far have gotten jobs, so we're saying so far the

         18  people that have departed from the Parks Department

         19  is around 400 and say 70 people approximately have

         20  left the Department. Of that, around 25 percent of

         21  them have gotten jobs already.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: And the ones

         23  who haven't gotten jobs, what are they doing?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: They go

         25  in unemployment primarily, and they also work with
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          2  HRA in terms of any other subsidy program.

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  DIAMOND: And we've made services available to them

          5  even when they've left the Parks Department.

          6                 We have weekly meetings with people

          7  who are nearing the end of their time with the

          8  Department of Employment, with the Department of

          9  Labor, with the Parks Department, with contractors,

         10  to help them find opportunities so that even if they

         11  unfortunately leave the Parks Department without a

         12  job, there are an array of services available so

         13  that any time they spend on unemployment will

         14  hopefully be brief, and they'll be able to use their

         15  Parks Department experience to get right back into

         16  the job market.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Is there any,

         18  and then I'll wrap up, do you find, or you can tell

         19  me numbers, in terms of those workers, does anyone

         20  go back onto public assistance, or is it just

         21  usually temporary unemployment and then they secure

         22  positions?

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  DIAMOND: We don't have those numbers, but our hope

         25  certainly is that, while everyone is eligible to
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          2  apply for public assistance, our hope is that as

          3  many as possible move to private employment.

          4                 The theory behind a program is that

          5  people will take their Parks Department experience,

          6  their 11 and a half months of paid experience, and

          7  then use that to catapult themselves into private

          8  employment. That's the model that we've been using,

          9  that's why we have all the efforts to move to

         10  private employment built into the program and we're

         11  showing some success, we hope to have greater

         12  success.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Do you not

         14  have those numbers with you, or you don't have those

         15  numbers?

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  DIAMOND: I don't have those numbers with me, but

         18  many of the people who are eligible for unemployment

         19  may not be eligible for public assistance. They all

         20  certainly apply and they would be evaluated, but

         21  because of the way they rule, they may not be

         22  immediately eligible for public assistance.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: I understand.

         24                 But you just said that the thrust is

         25  to get people back into the -- "catapult" themselves
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          2  I believe was your word.

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  DIAMOND: That's right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: So, it just

          6  seems to me that in order to know, measure if you're

          7  catapulting people, you need to have some numbers to

          8  say if we've trained 100, 98 have gotten jobs, one

          9  has gotten unemployment, one has gone back. So,

         10  that's why I'm asking if those numbers are

         11  available, I'd like you to get them to the

         12  Committee, because these are the type of questions I

         13  would have hoped you would have been prepared to

         14  answer today in the context of what this hearing is

         15  about.

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  DIAMOND: The first people only left the Parks

         18  Department six or seven weeks ago, so this has not

         19  been a long-term phenomenon of people leaving. Most

         20  of the people are still working at the Parks

         21  Department, so the kind of data you're looking for,

         22  although certainly appropriate, it's probably too

         23  early to make any conclusions because the numbers

         24  have just not developed sufficiently.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  Serrano.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chairman.

          5                 Deputy Commissioner Diamond, just

          6  help me understand something. Regarding the DOT Job

          7  Opportunity Programs, why were they let go after six

          8  months, even though Park workers got extensions to

          9  11 and a half months.

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  DIAMOND: Well, it was actually a little longer than

         12  six months, they were about seven months. But we had

         13  always intended the program to be about a six-month

         14  program.

         15                 As Commissioner Garafola said in his

         16  testimony, the six months for the first group came

         17  out to be around September 11th, and we had, at that

         18  point we extended it for an additional period to 11

         19  and a half months because laying people off right in

         20  the wake of September 11th would have created

         21  tremendous difficulties.

         22                 DOT didn't have those same issues, so

         23  we kept to the original design of the program, which

         24  was a short-term subsidized employment opportunity

         25  which people could then use to move to permanent
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          2  employment.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: And were the

          4  workers notified that these types of things would be

          5  occurring? Was a timetable given to the workers?

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  DIAMOND: Yes, when they were hired it's made clear.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Okay. Because

          9  the thing that troubles me, and I guess it's sort of

         10  the prevailing sentiment, and I just sort of echo

         11  the words of everyone here in this Committee, is

         12  that you had something in your hands, or you have

         13  something in your hands that was actually working,

         14  and it was a good use of the funds, and now the

         15  whole idea of it being in jeopardy is sort of not

         16  sitting well, obviously, with a lot of people.

         17                 So, again, I just hope to find out

         18  more what's going on here. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member

         20  Brewer.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 Good morning to both of you.

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  DIAMOND: Good morning.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Over the years

          3  I've had friends who have run this program, so I'm a

          4  little familiar with it, but in terms of education,

          5  training, job readiness, I know that in the past

          6  there have been accolades about the program in some

          7  cases, the one that was working, but there have been

          8  concerns about sort of figuring out what the future

          9  is.

         10                 So, I just wanted to know how you're

         11  using other federal or state or City programs,

         12  everything from all child care opportunities, job

         13  readiness, what's the range in which people have the

         14  opportunity to take advantage?

         15                 I know you mentioned that they do,

         16  but what's the range of opportunity for people to

         17  figure out what their future is?

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  DIAMOND: You're talking about, just so I'm clear,

         20  the one day a week?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Education,

         22  training, job readiness, job search, everything that

         23  would be available to workers in any job that you're

         24  offering?

         25                 In other words, obviously one may or
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          2  may not be able to stay there for the future, one

          3  might like to move up, different career choice.

          4  Everything that could make someone a very whole

          5  person in terms of one's future.

          6                 I'm obviously always concerned about

          7  education, ESL classes, everything that you need,

          8  child care.

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  DIAMOND: Okay. There are a number of efforts and we

         11  both can describe what is in place.

         12                 Just to be clear, everyone in the

         13  program receives one day off with pay to pursue

         14  precisely the kinds of things that you're talking

         15  about, education, job search, training, because we

         16  recognize that the job they're in is only a

         17  temporary one, and they need additional time on top

         18  of their working time to be able to get themselves

         19  into a position where they can move to private

         20  employment.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And, Seth, you

         22  do that in-house?

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  DIAMOND:  Well, why don't Parks talk about their

         25  effort, and then I can talk about some of the other
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          2  efforts that are in place.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: A

          5  number of the things that we do do, a number of the

          6  programs we do are in-house.

          7                 We do have a few things that we do

          8  with the Board of Education, in terms of some of the

          9  ESL training and the GED training that we do do.

         10                 We have areas, we have them in our

         11  rec centers generally where we run our programs,

         12  they work, people work with counselors, they work

         13  with job developers and we basically track all our

         14  people in terms of when they're going on interviews,

         15  and also in terms of recruitment days.  And what

         16  Commissioner Diamond was saying, in terms of going

         17  on a recruitment day or going to a job fair, people

         18  are excused from work that day, and we want them to

         19  go, we encourage them to go. In fact, in some cases

         20  our people stay at the job, and in many cases they

         21  enjoy the job so much that they don't really want to

         22  go to these things, so we have to encourage them

         23  that you should go to your training, you should go

         24  see your job counselor, your job developer, because

         25  that's the way that we think we can guarantee or
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          2  really help you, you know, really leverage the

          3  possibilities and the probabilities of getting your

          4  job in the private sector.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And how many

          6  people partake in this, approximately? Or what's the

          7  percentage of participants in the program who take

          8  advantage of this service, or who can? I mean, they

          9  are limited?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes, I

         11  would say most of the people participate in the

         12  program, and we encourage all of them to

         13  participate. There's just some people that, you

         14  know, we find, and, you know, I just find in some

         15  cases where people will write letters and say, you

         16  know, I want to keep my Parks job, and we say, you

         17  know, this is a temporary job, it was for a

         18  transitional period of time, and then basically, you

         19  know, we are encouraging the people to go off into a

         20  private sector or a non-pay, another job, not a

         21  Parks' job.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The reason I

         23  wanted to know how many people, the reason I asked

         24  is I know for instance the Board of Ed and other ESL

         25  programs really have long waiting lists, so is that
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          2  done in-house? Some of these programs that you're

          3  describing, not the GED so much, but the ESL, and

          4  there's a long waiting list, so are people really

          5  able?

          6                 How many people are able to take

          7  advantage of what you would say was really the

          8  service that they need? And do you have a number for

          9  that?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

         11  Currently it's a couple of hundred people in the ESL

         12  training programs. We are working with the Board of

         13  Ed. Currently we have actually Board of Ed

         14  instructors who basically come to our rec centers

         15  and they do the programs there. And we've been

         16  making our places available, our rec centers

         17  available during the day, early in the morning, up

         18  to maybe 2:00, 3:00 when our after school programs

         19  come in, and generally that's when we finish up and

         20  our after school programs will come into our rec

         21  centers at that point.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         23                 Are there any numbers? Do you have

         24  any numbers?

         25                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  DIAMOND: Well, in addition to what the Parks

          3  Department does, we use our ESP programs, our

          4  employment service and placement programs, to

          5  provide the one day a week services so that people

          6  can move into jobs, so that people, many of the

          7  people who are in the Parks Department were working

          8  within ESP prior to moving to the Parks Department,

          9  they continue to have that relationship, and the ESP

         10  continues to serve them.

         11                 We've recently sent out several

         12  hundred letters to people in the Parks Department,

         13  reminding them that the ESPs are available and that

         14  they should be taking advantage of the one day a

         15  week that they're allocated to go and look for job

         16  and look for work and prepare themselves for

         17  employment.

         18                 So, between the two agencies, we

         19  think we have a good system to provide the extra

         20  services. We can always do more and we're certainly

         21  looking at that, and that is part of the discussions

         22  we're having, but we think we have a good system in

         23  place.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: All right, so

         25  there's another 200 or more or something like that
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          2  in that program? Is there an overlap perhaps?

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  DIAMOND: That's one of the issues that we seek to

          5  make sure that everyone is getting service, but that

          6  their services don't bump into each other.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Mr. Chairman,

          8  could we get some numbers later on? Could we get

          9  numbers? Okay.

         10                 And then day care, is that a

         11  challenge? Is that a problem? How is that dealt

         12  with? Is it the voucher? Group day care, family day

         13  care?

         14                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  DIAMOND: Most of the people that are working in the

         16  Parks Department previously were engaged in some

         17  type of work activity, so in the main they had child

         18  care in place.

         19                 But, of course, retaining the child

         20  care continues to be a challenge, and I know the

         21  Parks Department has done great efforts with the

         22  people who are working to continue to work with them

         23  to make sure that they're able to maintain child

         24  care.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Your status
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          2  can change when you're working. And that's usually a

          3  big problem; is it in this case?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: When

          5  participants come in and they come into the POP

          6  program, we work with them in terms of their child

          7  care need, because we think that's one of the most

          8  important things to get the people to work.

          9                 And also, we think that by doing that

         10  and straightening that out right away, that

         11  encourages people so when they go to other jobs,

         12  that they can go and they're going to be there and

         13  they're going to be on time and they're going to get

         14  to them on daily basis.

         15                 So, that's an important thing and we

         16  work very closely with the people to do that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member

         20  Gerson.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes. Hi, and

         22  thank you very much.

         23                 I just to very briefly go back to the

         24  issue of the interrelationship between the POP

         25  program and the temporary employment program, and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            50

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  actually you testified there is no

          3  interrelationship, but I guess I'm having a little

          4  trouble understanding that both historically and

          5  logically. Maybe you could help me out.

          6                 Historically it's not unheard of for

          7  at least some City agencies during difficult

          8  budgetary times when their cutbacks have been

          9  necessary to replace it in job functions with

         10  temporary or to attempt to with temporary employees.

         11  Is it your testimony that that will absolutely not

         12  be the case, and with respect to these POP

         13  positions, in relationship to the temporary

         14  employment, or temporary employees, that no

         15  temporary employee will ever be used to fill a

         16  position that was once performed by a POP employer

         17  -- employee?

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  DIAMOND: My testimony is that there are two separate

         20  programs; there are temporary workers and there are

         21  Parks Department workers. The two are not mixed

         22  together. Temporary workers are not used to replace

         23  workers --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And they'll

         25  never be used in a Parks Department context?
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  DIAMOND: We have no current plans to do that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Can you assure

          5  us that you will not do that?

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  DIAMOND: You can never speak for the future, but

          8  there are no current plans to do that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Then given the

         10  fact that we have one budget that funds both

         11  categories of workers, to at least taking out the

         12  federal funding sources, don't the two kind of have

         13  to be evaluated together when you do your overall

         14  budget? Don't you have to allocate a certain amount

         15  to temporary, a certain amount to POP, as part of an

         16  overall budget approach?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  DIAMOND: Well, when you do a budget you have to

         19  consider everything, not just those two programs,

         20  but a variety of programs.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Right.

         22                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  DIAMOND: And all the programs are being looked at,

         24  we're in very tough budget times and there are a lot

         25  of needs, and certainly these two are in
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          2  consideration, yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: What will be

          4  your criteria, or have you reached the point where

          5  you have kind of through the purposes of evaluating

          6  whether certain Parks' positions going forward

          7  should be filled by POP officers or eliminated or in

          8  part substituted by temporary employees, what

          9  criteria do you expect to use to evaluate that?

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  DIAMOND: Well, again, these matters are under

         12  discussion with the Parks Department.

         13                 We're currently talking to them about

         14  this and there's larger discussions about all kinds

         15  of programs that we want to use.

         16                 Our priority is, of course, to move

         17  people into unsubsidized employment. We want to make

         18  sure that they're off public assistance and making

         19  progress to getting out of poverty and to a better

         20  life for them and their family.

         21                 We want the programs in place that

         22  will best do that. The Parks Department program is

         23  one of a number of programs that is being looked at

         24  as a way, as a vehicle to move people to

         25  self-sufficiency, and we hear your concerns and,
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          2  again, we're under negotiations --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, then let

          4  me just conclude with two questions to each of you

          5  respectively, really the same question, different

          6  versions.

          7                 To the Parks Department, do you agree

          8  that the functions filled currently performed by the

          9  POP employees are best performed, or could be better

         10  performed by a POP employee and in a full-time 11

         11  and a half month program, or whatever the exact

         12  number or time period, rather than by a temporary

         13  employee, knowing the work that they do?

         14                 And to you, sir, would you agree that

         15  the purposes you outline in terms of transitioning

         16  people to full-time work again would be better

         17  served by making, if we have a tough time and we

         18  have to make a choice, we're better serving the

         19  purpose of finding permanent work by having the POP

         20  program rather than the temporary program if it

         21  comes to that?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I would

         23  just answer that.  Currently I really can't make the

         24  comparison because we don't have any temporary

         25  workers working for the Parks Department right now.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And wouldn't

          3  you like to keep it that way?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: But I

          5  will say this, that the people who are working for

          6  us right now, many of the people who are in this

          7  Chamber right now are doing a very good job and

          8  we're very pleased with their performance.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And that's my

         10  observation for my local park.

         11                 And the other half of the question,

         12  sir?

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  DIAMOND: Right. I just want to again reiterate,

         15  there are no plans to use temporary workers in the

         16  Parks Department. That's not something that is being

         17  discussed.

         18                 Again, our priority is moving them to

         19  permanent employment, and we have to look at all the

         20  programs that are available - the temporary program,

         21  the Parks Department program, not necessarily a

         22  choice between one or the other, it's looking at all

         23  the programs and making the choices about how you

         24  allocate your resources to make sure you have the

         25  best program in place to move people to employment.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: A couple good

          4  questions from the Chairman.

          5                 Does the Parks Department work

          6  cooperatively with any labor unions in finding the

          7  workers who are in the program full-time employment?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We do

          9  work, obviously, we work with DC 37, one of the

         10  unions that the POP employees are involved with.

         11                 We also work with the Central Labor

         12  Council. We have rapid response programs almost on a

         13  weekly basis, and we work with the Department of

         14  Employment and the State Department of Labor and the

         15  Central Labor Council appears at those as well, and

         16  we work with them also.

         17                   CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. A quick

         18  question on the TANF money. How much in Fiscal Year

         19  '02, last year, how much money was allocated to the

         20  program, total?

         21                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  DIAMOND: Again, the cost for '02 I have to be about

         23  $30 million through 4/02. I think you had a

         24  different number that we can discuss, but that's

         25  what I have.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay, that's the

          3  TANF money for the program. Any money of that

          4  returned due to non-use of the money? Any money

          5  returned back to the government?

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  DIAMOND: Just to be clear, that's not just TANF

          8  money. What I was speaking to was the cost of the

          9  program to Parks. It includes welfare to work money,

         10  cost to HRA, to reimburse Parks. That includes

         11  welfare to work money, TANF money and any other

         12  available funds we need.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay, the

         14  funding money, the TANF money, do you have a number

         15  allocated to TANF that was funded to the program?

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  DIAMOND: No, I don't have that here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And you would

         19  know then if any money was returned due to non-use?

         20                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  DIAMOND: That's a larger discussion than just the

         22  Parks Department program, I don't have that here.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes, I think

         24  we're all on the same page here. We want to make

         25  sure that the program is done correctly, we want to
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          2  make sure that the workers, you know -- it's a

          3  successful program but we can't go forward if we

          4  don't have information. I think that's very

          5  important.

          6                 If we're all on the same page here to

          7  do what is best, we're going to have to have -- you

          8  know, we'll be on the same page with information as

          9  well. I think that's of utmost importance.

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  DIAMOND: All the money that has been allocated to

         12  the Parks Department has been used for this program

         13  so there's no excess there.

         14                 The issues you're raising are larger

         15  issues that, again, are part of a general discussion

         16  of the budget, and I'm sure will be the subject of

         17  your budget hearings.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: We must follow

         19  up with that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Commissioners,

         21  I just want to do a final few questions. We should

         22  just note we're joined by Council Member Dilan,

         23  Council Member Seabrook and Council Member Perkins.

         24                 Just following very quickly on the

         25  non-use. So, Commissioner Diamond, you're saying in
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          2  terms of welfare, federal welfare to work funds that

          3  went to Parks Opportunity Program and Jobs

          4  Opportunity Program, you do not know of any non-use

          5  at this point?

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  DIAMOND: That's correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, two

          9  questions.

         10                 One, so, obviously you have developed

         11  relationships with the labor movement in developing

         12  some of this approach, which I think is another

         13  commendable piece of the Jobs Opportunity Program.

         14                 Has the Administration had

         15  conversations with DC 37 and with the Central Labor

         16  Council on the question of moving towards, in any

         17  manifestation, moving towards a Temp Force model?

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  DIAMOND: What do you mean, I'm sorry, when you say

         20  "Temp Force"?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I mean, I don't

         22  want to bias the question by referring to the views

         23  the Labor Movement may have about the trend towards

         24  temporary work. I'm asking a simpler question. I'm

         25  simply saying since Temp Force is now being looked
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          2  at as a possibility, I'm being very true to your

          3  statement that things are on the table, there's

          4  negotiations around; have you engaged the labor

          5  movement to discuss the pros and cons of going in

          6  that direction?

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  DIAMOND: I know Temp Force has been on the agenda at

          9  some labor management meetings that the unions have

         10  had with Commissioner Eggelston. And I'm sure

         11  they've had a discussion about that, I'm not sure

         12  about the nature of his discussion or exactly what

         13  was discussed.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

         15                 And lastly for me, and I think we

         16  have one final brief question from Councilman

         17  Serrano before both Commissioners go back to their

         18  agencies, again, I agree with Chairman Addabbo, I

         19  think we are speaking some of the same language

         20  here, and have I heard you correctly, Commissioner

         21  Diamond, we do look to the private sector as the

         22  ultimate opportunity, and it sounds like you share

         23  our view, that the more data we have to look at

         24  outcomes, the more we can work from verified

         25  outcomes and say, okay, we will now build our
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          2  programs based on outcomes that really occur, that

          3  is the ideal. But, again, I don't hear you

          4  criticizing the Job Opportunity Program, Parks

          5  Opportunity Program model.

          6                 So, I'm going to ask you just a very

          7  simple two-part question: Does the Administration

          8  have any serious -- I know you're in negotiation,

          9  I'm not biasing that off, do you have any particular

         10  critique or concern about the performance of the job

         11  opportunity program?

         12                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  DIAMOND: Again, our priority is to try and move

         14  people to work. So, the program is, we want to make

         15  sure that the program is structured in a way that

         16  will remove them not just to the Parks Department

         17  job, although people who work in there do a great

         18  job, but it's structured to move them beyond the

         19  Parks Department job, into private sector

         20  employment.

         21                 That's currently the nature of the

         22  discussions that we're having. There are obviously

         23  funding issues that have to be evaluated, too, and

         24  if we can conclude that then we'll be able to

         25  explain what the future of the program is.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I appreciate

          3  it. Just to finish by saying, please, if everyone

          4  could keep your voices down, we'd really appreciate

          5  it. We're just wrapping up with the two

          6  commissioners here, that if you're analysis does

          7  prove, as we have heard up-to-date, that the program

          8  has been effective at preparing people for long-term

          9  employment, and obviously we do very much appreciate

         10  the fact that it's living wage benefits, et cetera,

         11  if your analysis proves that this is an effective

         12  approach, then I think this Committee would

         13  recommend not only maintaining it, but expanding the

         14  Job Opportunity Program.

         15                 And now Council Member Serrano, you

         16  had a follow-up question?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chairman.

         19                 Just very quickly, I mean it's very

         20  basic, if the current program is working well, and

         21  it's paying workers a fair wage, why on earth would

         22  we consider adding an additional layer in the form

         23  of Temp Force, which would only serve to lower the

         24  wages of the workers?

         25                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  DIAMOND: What I've tried to make clear is that the

          3  Temp Force Program should not be considered in the

          4  same discussion with the Parks workers, they're two

          5  separate programs. We're not looking at replacing

          6  Parks' workers with Temp Force workers, we're not

          7  looking at reducing the time that anyone in Parks is

          8  working to move them to Temp Force. They're two

          9  separate initiatives and offer two different kinds

         10  of opportunities, and I don't think mixing them

         11  together presents an accurate picture of where we're

         12  moving.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: I understand

         14  what you're saying, Deputy Commissioner, and I am

         15  not -- I know that you're not replacing Parks

         16  workers with Temp Force, I'm just saying, as they

         17  are given the option to move from it after they are

         18  sort of not continued in a program that's not

         19  working.

         20                 So, I understand that it's not a

         21  replacement issue, but I'm saying it's a principle

         22  issue, it's a priority issue. If it is something

         23  that is paying people a living wage, then why on

         24  earth would we even offer as an alternative when

         25  their 11 and a half months are up, that's going to
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          2  pay them less than what they were getting paid

          3  before.

          4                 I mean, it's just common sense that

          5  you would try to hold onto something that's working

          6  properly and not ask them -- it's almost like an

          7  insult to ask them to take another job to get paid

          8  less money.

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  DIAMOND: Again, the people who are offered

         11  opportunities at Temp Force at the completion of

         12  their Parks Department jobs have worked almost a

         13  year at the Parks Department. There is a limit on

         14  how much we can subsidize somebody's wages, that

         15  limit is a year, so they've reached the end of the

         16  time that the City is able to provide them a

         17  subsidized opportunity.

         18                 We hope that they will be able to get

         19  a private sector job, that's all the efforts that

         20  the Parks Department puts in, that's what HRA does

         21  with them before their time at HRA ends.

         22                 If, however, all those efforts don't

         23  work, then our priority, of course, is to keep

         24  people working, and we've used Temp Force in some

         25  instances as almost a safety net, to have people
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          2  give people an option.

          3                 We hope that they can get a different

          4  job, they're free, obviously, to turn down that job

          5  and pursue whatever job they want, we cannot

          6  subsidize them any longer at the Parks Department at

          7  the end of that year.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: No, I

          9  understand.

         10                 I understand also that we're in very

         11  tough economic times, and the reality of finding a

         12  private sector job after is not as strong as many of

         13  us would hope, and that is just the reality of the

         14  situation.

         15                 So, being that you have a time limit

         16  on doing this 12 months, 11 and a half months, why

         17  not look to continue it further? Why not look to

         18  make it continue year after year?

         19                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  DIAMOND: As I said, there's a limit on how long you

         21  can subsidize someone using the TANF money, using

         22  the welfare to work money. That limit is about a

         23  year, and that's what we're doing.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Commissioner

         25  Garafola, Commissioner Diamond, I appreciate your
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          2  time today.

          3                 If we are to move forward, like I

          4  said earlier, for the benefit of our parks, for the

          5  benefit of these workers and their families and

          6  their children, it's very important that we move

          7  forward together from common ground, which is what

          8  is doing best, but for us to move forward, we've got

          9  to be prepared. We've got to be dedicated and

         10  prepared with information, with numbers and with, as

         11  I said, dedication to move forward. To make sure

         12  that this program has definitely shown historically

         13  that it works, to make sure it continues to work

         14  more efficiently, and, again, for the benefit of

         15  these workers and their families.

         16                 Thank you very much, Commissioners.

         17                 Our next speakers will be Zora

         18  Alamante, Norma White, and Florence Figueroa.

         19                 I just want to announce we have been

         20  joined by Council members Christine Quinn, and

         21  Council Member James Sanders, and Council Member

         22  Robert Jackson.

         23                 (Audience outburst.)

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: We hear you. We

         25  hope the Administration hears you, because we want
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          2  to work together and go forward with this program.

          3  So, we hear you, we hope the members of the

          4  Administration that have stayed hear you as well,

          5  but we also need to hear our new panel.

          6                 So, if you please raise your right

          7  hand, you will be sworn in.

          8                 MR. NEWMAN: Do you solemnly swear or

          9  affirm the testimony you are about to give is the

         10  truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         12                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

         13  for the record. Press the button.

         14                 MS. FIGUEROA: Florence Figueroa.

         15                 MS. HELICK: Lisa Helick for Norma

         16  White.

         17                 MS. DANZA: Maureen Danza (phonetic)

         18  for Zora Alamante.

         19                 MS. RICHARDS: Jennifer Richards from

         20  MLK.

         21                 MR. NEWMAN: Please begin your

         22  testimony.

         23                 MS. FIGUEROA: Hello. Good morning. My

         24  name is Florence Figueroa and I was recently working

         25  in the Jobs Opportunity Program, a welfare to work
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          2  program, in the Department of Transportation. Myself

          3  and 60 to 100 other former welfare recipients were

          4  working as city debris removers at the 203rd Street

          5  yard and other sites around New York City.

          6                 Our job was to clean the highways all

          7  around New York. We removed debris from the side of

          8  the highways, did landscape duties, such as trimming

          9  the grass, rake the leaves, shoveled and swept what

         10  we found on the road.

         11                 We also were responsible for doing

         12  clerical work, cleaning the offices of the district

         13  supervisors and the locker rooms for the employees

         14  of the DOT.

         15                 We were given high recommendations by

         16  the Deputy Commissioner of the Department of

         17  Transportation, which is Ms. Maurey Forgione

         18  (phonetic), and Acting Director Joseph Patelli

         19  (phonetic). I have a letter here with

         20  recommendations that we did a good job. And from our

         21  district supervisor John Armstrong. This job allowed

         22  us to feel responsible to our work, self-sufficient

         23  and feel like we were part of the community, while

         24  we could earn a living supporting our families and

         25  living above our circumstances.
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          2                 When we started the program in August

          3  of 2001, we were originally told that we would have

          4  these jobs for six months.

          5                 Later on in the program we were told

          6  that the program would be extended of a total of 11

          7  and a half months, which was untrue because we only

          8  got six months.

          9                 On February 27 of this year, we were

         10  dismissed only after six months. We understood that

         11  these programs were temporary employment, but now we

         12  are left without no options except unemployment,

         13  which we have been struggling to collect.

         14                 Right now I've been out of work for

         15  two months already, and I still haven't gotten

         16  unemployment. So, I'm without income for two months.

         17  And not only myself, but other girls that are

         18  working with me.

         19                 We refuse to go back on public

         20  assistance because it feels like we're back to

         21  square one. We refuse to do WEP programs because it

         22  pays less than minimum wage and it robs us of our

         23  dignity.

         24                 I'm a mother and a grandmother, and I

         25  have a family to support, and I have bills to pay. I
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          2  have a family to support and I have bills to pay.

          3                 Some of these women who are in this

          4  program are single parents. Some of them have five

          5  children and don't know how they're going to support

          6  their children.

          7                 We did a great job with DOT, and to

          8  say that these Welfare to Work programs are

          9  successful is to offer us a chance to finish what

         10  was promised to us. We were told that we were going

         11  to have training programs, and they never gave it to

         12  us, for DOT.

         13                 Speaking for more than 100 people

         14  from DOT that worked on the City highways, and at

         15  the Staten Island Ferry and that were dismissed from

         16  the program after only six months, we want a chance

         17  to finish the program.

         18                 This transitional job program gave us

         19  some hope. Let us continue to hope and finish the

         20  last six months that remain.

         21                 I'm here to ask how is the Human

         22  Resource Administration using the TANF funds given

         23  to the City by the federal government for these

         24  Welfare to Work programs?

         25                 To me, as a living testimony, and by
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          2  my experiences of being a WEP worker in the past,

          3  complying with the WEP program for six months and

          4  after completing my assignment being told that there

          5  was no opportunity to be hired, having again to do

          6  another WEP assignment, my point is that this

          7  program, like WEP, and the Job Opportunity Programs,

          8  are not giving us the opportunity to excel and to

          9  make a future for ourselves. We need the TANF

         10  funding to be used for the Welfare to Work programs

         11  that are monitored closely by the HRA and the City

         12  agencies that run these programs to make sure that

         13  they offer us the proper training to finally

         14  maintain permanent jobs.

         15                 We don't want to take a step

         16  backwards and return to the welfare system.

         17                 Lastly, we want to be treated fairly,

         18  not only for ourselves but also for those that come

         19  after me.

         20                 We need HRA, the City Council and

         21  Mayor Bloomberg to provide funds to put into these

         22  transitional job programs that will give us a

         23  chance.

         24                 We were given the responsibility to

         25  perform a job which we completed. We did our part
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          2  and all we ask is that you do your part.

          3                 Speaking for all the DOT workers that

          4  were at the JOP program working on the highways and

          5  on the Staten Island Ferry, all we ask is that we

          6  want our jobs back.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 (Audience outburst.)

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. We hear

         10  you. We hear you.

         11                 What I'm going to do, we need to hear

         12  the rest of the panel, what I'd like the panel to do

         13  is just to cooperate a little bit, if you could do

         14  your testimony within three minutes, just so we get

         15  a chance to hear everybody, because we have other

         16  panels to speak, and, again, we do hear you.

         17                 MS. ALAMANTE: (Speaking in Spanish).

         18                 MS. DANZA: Good morning. My name is

         19  Maureen Danza, I'm doing English translation for

         20  Zora Alamante.

         21                 Zora Alamante became a part of the

         22  POPs program in October of 2001. She did various WEP

         23  programs and she worked at the High Bridge Park in

         24  Washington Heights.

         25                 She is here speaking as someone who
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          2  has participated in many programs that HRA has to

          3  offer, and instead, I can tell from the experience

          4  of the POPs program, it has given considerably more

          5  opportunities to better themselves, as far as the

          6  WEP program has done.

          7                 As being a part of this, the POP

          8  program, it is education and training programs that

          9  will help us find permanent employment that will pay

         10  sufficiently to support our families in a manner

         11  that will enable us to live with dignity.

         12                 Before we leave the program, we need

         13  to have tools necessary to do this. In her case she

         14  wants to learn English, and one thing that this

         15  program is missing is that they have not offered

         16  enough of education and training.

         17                 In actuality, the people that have

         18  arrived at the end of their 11 months, have ended up

         19  without employment and have very few options open to

         20  them.

         21                 We want to continue working in this

         22  program that has given us something that other

         23  previous programs have not offered, a salary, an

         24  opportunity to live with dignity; however, we need

         25  more time in the program to give the City the
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          2  opportunity to offer us the training and educational

          3  service that will realistically give us a chance to

          4  successfully advance in obtaining permanent work.

          5                 I am here to ask you to give up that

          6  chance.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MS. RICHARDS: Good morning. My name

          9  is Jennifer Richards. I work for District 5 at

         10  Martin Luther King Park.

         11                 I would just like to say to you all

         12  this morning -- I would just like to address the

         13  audience this morning, because the Welfare

         14  Department has given us jobs and consequently now

         15  has decided to lay us off.

         16                 Many workers have large families, and

         17  this does not make any sense to me.

         18                 I saw many mothers crying and does

         19  (sic) not know which way to turn now that the job is

         20  ended.

         21                 Why are these people trying to kill

         22  the poor and their families? What are they going to

         23  gain to see us suffer?

         24                 I know there is going to be a civil

         25  war because no one cares. What's going on? Is all

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            74

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  the people in office with lots of money, have they

          3  all gone crazy?

          4                 I just want to sing this little

          5  version for you, because I'm so fed up with the

          6  system, I just want to run back to South America.

          7  But because of the war with the Guerrillas I'm

          8  afraid to fly.

          9                 The song goes like this:

         10                 Wake up everybody, no more sleeping

         11  in the end, of thinking ahead

         12                 The world has changed so very much

         13  from what it used to be, much hatred, war and

         14  poverty.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         16  Jennifer.

         17                 I hear your good intention, and I

         18  appreciate your intention to do good work, and I

         19  also appreciate the work that you do. As Parks

         20  Chair, I appreciate the work you do in our parks,

         21  for the safety of our families who use these parks.

         22  And today is Bring Your Child To Work Day, and I

         23  want to acknowledge because you do the work so these

         24  children can use our parks, we have here two

         25  children from Council Member Peter Vallone, it's
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          2  Catherine and Caroline, who are here in the back.

          3                 And the work that you do, the work

          4  that you do so they could be safe and children

          5  across the City can be safe in our parks, so I

          6  applaud the work that you do.

          7                 I also want to acknowledge students

          8  here from NYU, who are taking notes today. Thank you

          9  for being here as well.

         10                 And now we will hear from Council

         11  Member James Sanders.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chair.

         14                 To all of my neighbors, you see, I

         15  was born in the Rockaways where 26.4 percent of my

         16  neighbors are on social services, so I know a little

         17  something about TANF and I know a little something

         18  about WEP, what it can do, what it does poorly,

         19  things of that nature.

         20                 In days gone by, this City Council

         21  has provided money for transitional employment. We

         22  need to revisit that to see -- I believe that that

         23  money was frozen under the previous administration,

         24  and I trust that this Administration will be wiser

         25  than its predecessor. The previous administration
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          2  sadly, they may have done many good things, but they

          3  squandered the opportunity to use TANF.

          4                 The Temporary Assistance for Needy

          5  Families was designed to help move people along.

          6  There was a lot of money that the federal government

          7  had in it for training, for transportation, for

          8  money that was supposed to be used for day care,

          9  that because of ideological reasons the

         10  Administration decided to show that it didn't need

         11  those monies, that it could do all of these things

         12  without those monies, and sadly, we paid a heavy

         13  cost for that, and we're still paying a heavy cost

         14  for that.

         15                 I trust that this new Administration

         16  will be wiser, and I certainly believe that my

         17  colleagues, and I encourage my colleagues on the

         18  City Council that we need to fight to ensure that

         19  there is transitional money, that if people want to

         20  get out there and they want to work hard, and they

         21  are willing to get out there and do that nine to

         22  five or whatever it is, and they give it everything

         23  that they've got, and more, then we need to meet the

         24  other hand, too. We need to grab that hand and help

         25  them move forward.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I want to thank

          4  the panel for their testimony.

          5                 I'm sorry.

          6                 MS. HUELICK: My name is Lisa Huelick

          7  (phonetic), and I'm talking for Norma White and

          8  myself. I'm a City seasonal worker. I clean the

          9  parks, I also do security. We provide clean parks

         10  for New York City people, we provide security. Now

         11  they're telling us that we won't have our jobs.

         12                 Unemployment will not help me when

         13  this job is over with my bills.

         14                 I no longer receive benefits from

         15  public assistance. I no longer receive child care,

         16  nor Medicaid. They tell us we will have child care.

         17  I pay for that out of my pocket. I pay for that out

         18  of the salary I receive from working. Without this,

         19  I don't know what's going to happen. I'm going to be

         20  devastated once I lose my job, and I don't see why,

         21  if we're doing the job, that they can't keep us

         22  there. We know what we're doing, we was trained to

         23  do this. Now you're going to bring other people in

         24  maybe to do what we're doing? We need these jobs.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well, as I said
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          2  earlier, we appreciate your efforts. We appreciate

          3  the work that you do, and, again, we're not here to

          4  cure all the problems today, we're definitely

          5  raising the awareness that there is a problem and it

          6  has to be addressed. And we will be back here if

          7  need be.

          8                 MS. HUELICH: We don't need promises,

          9  we need help.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I hear you. I

         11  hear you.

         12                 I want to thank the panel for their

         13  testimony. Thank you very much. Thank you.

         14                 I would like to call the next panel.

         15  Mike Klein, from New Yorkers for Parks; Noah Zatz,

         16  National Employment Lan Project, and Mark Rosenthal

         17  from DC 37, the next panel, please.

         18                 Welcome, gentlemen. Please raise your

         19  right hand to be sworn in.

         20                 MR. NEWMAN: Do you solemnly swear or

         21  affirm that the testimony you're about to give is

         22  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         23  truth?

         24                 MR. KLEIN: I do.

         25                 MR. ZATZ: I do.
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          2                 MR. ROSENTHAL: I do.

          3                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

          4  and affiliations for the record.

          5                 MR. ROSENTHAL: Mark Rosenthal, DC 37,

          6  Treasurer, President of Local 983, and represent

          7  Park Opportunity Workers.

          8                 MR. ZATZ: Noah Zatz, Staff Attorney,

          9  National Employment Lan Project.

         10                 MR. KLEIN: Mike Klein, from New

         11  Yorkers for Parks, and Parks 2001, the campaign last

         12  year.

         13                 MR. NEWMAN: Please begin.

         14                 MR. ROSENTHAL: I wish to thank the

         15  Chairs of the General Welfare and Parks Committees,

         16  Bill DeBlasio and Joseph Addabbo, for calling this

         17  joint hearing of the General Welfare and Parks

         18  Committees on the Job Opportunity Program at the New

         19  York City Department of Parks and Recreation.

         20                 Let me also thank all the members on

         21  these committees for the opportunity to address this

         22  important issue.

         23                 But before I speak about what a

         24  success the Parks Job Opportunity Program has been,

         25  and what it means to welfare recipients in the
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          2  program, I want to address the larger picture in

          3  which the Administration's policies are unfolding.

          4                 We face the worst job market in the

          5  decade.  The terrorist attack on the World Trade

          6  Center could not have been anticipated, but its

          7  impact, complying with a growing recession, has put

          8  over 100,000 New Yorkers out of work and

          9  unemployment is still rising.

         10                 On top of this, 80,000 public

         11  assistant recipients, many of them single parents

         12  with children, have come to the end of their

         13  five-year lifetime eligibility of the worst possible

         14  moment.

         15                 It is a perfect storm for low-wage

         16  workers. The government should step in to help. If

         17  the federal government won't help, the New York City

         18  government should.

         19                 The Parks Job Opportunity Program is

         20  a step toward the kind of program that my union DC

         21  37 wants to see preserved and expanded.

         22                 Over the last year, the POP program,

         23  as it is called, placed approximately 3,500 welfare

         24  recipients in City seasonal aid positions.

         25                 Most POP workers were women, many had
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          2  held multiple WEP assignments for months, if not

          3  years. They revolved through the system without

          4  getting the training or work experience they needed

          5  to get full-time jobs in the private sector.

          6                 In the POP program they became City

          7  seasonal aids and members of my union, Local 983.

          8  They earned as much as $9.38 an hour with union

          9  benefits. They remained eligible for child care, and

         10  transportation assistance from HRA.

         11                 They did all the work typical of City

         12  seasonal aides, cleaned beaches, picked up litter,

         13  raked leaves, prepared equipment, supervised

         14  playgrounds, patrolled parks, provided information

         15  to the public and advised park-goers about rules or

         16  regulations.

         17                 This is honorable work, and needs to

         18  be done to keep New York City parks in good

         19  condition, and recipients working the POP program

         20  are honorable workers, just like any regular City

         21  seasonal aid employed by the City, they deserve a

         22  chance at a full-time permanent job in the City or

         23  private sector. They have earned it.

         24                 But instead, in the last minutes of

         25  the Giuliani Administration, HRA ended a Job
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          2  Opportunity Program at the Parks Department. HRA

          3  decided to contract out the entire program to a

          4  prior agency, Temp Force.

          5                 Welfare recipients referred to this

          6  program get just $7.95 per hour and are deprived the

          7  opportunity to belong to the union.

          8                 We believe this is in the wrong

          9  direction and strongly urge Mayor Bloomberg and the

         10  HRA Commissioner Verna Eggelston to reconsider.

         11                 What do we propose? Number one, the

         12  Job Opportunity Program at the Parks Department

         13  should continue so that other welfare recipients

         14  have the chance to gain experience in civil service

         15  jobs, and union wages. These positions should last

         16  no longer than 12 months.

         17                 2) The Job Opportunity Program should

         18  be improved so that welfare recipients receive

         19  better training services on one day per week set

         20  aside for this purpose. We believe this training

         21  should include preparation to take entry level civil

         22  service tests which would enable them to compete for

         23  full-time public jobs.

         24                 3) The City should restore the 2,634

         25  full-time positions cut from the Parks Department
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          2  over the last decade.

          3                 In March 1990, the Parks Department

          4  had 4,564 full-time positions. By February of this

          5  year, the number had fallen to just 1,930.

          6                 The Parks Department largely made up

          7  this gap by deploying welfare recipients working off

          8  their grants in WEP assignments. Only when the union

          9  sued Mayor Giuliani was this trend even partially

         10  reversed.

         11                 Displacing established public workers

         12  in this way demeans the remaining employees, shuts

         13  off opportunities for recipients who desperately

         14  want living wage jobs, and makes them more difficult

         15  to provide quality services to the public. It is not

         16  right.

         17                 Mayor Bloomberg may be unable to

         18  immediately restore these jobs, but we want to see

         19  progress made in this direction.

         20                 Mayor Bloomberg and the City Council

         21  should restore entry level positions across the

         22  range of titles and allow welfare recipients, who

         23  train through the Job Opportunity Program, and

         24  others to apply. It will restore hope to poor

         25  families who have few job prospects in the private
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          2  job market.

          3                 My union joins Community Voices

          4  Heard, the National Employment Law Project, and

          5  others in urging Mayor Bloomberg to embrace the

          6  goals of the Transitional Jobs law. He should move

          7  quickly to create additional training positions in

          8  other City agencies, and not rely on some shame

          9  temporary payroll contractor like Temp Force to do

         10  the job.

         11                 The City Council approved the

         12  Transitional Jobs Program more than two years ago

         13  over Mayor Giuliani's veto. It's now the law. By

         14  ending the City's reliance on WEP, and implementing

         15  the Transitional Jobs law, Mayor Bloomberg would

         16  send a clear message that his Administration works

         17  for all New Yorkers.

         18                 There's a dramatic humanitarian need

         19  in this City after 9/11 to take care of our own.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you. I

         22  just ask that the remaining panel keep their remarks

         23  as close to three minutes as possible.

         24                 MR. ZATZ: Good morning, again. As I

         25  said, I'm Noah Zatz, Staff Attorney at the National
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          2  Employment Law Project, or NELP.

          3                 NELP is a non-profit organization

          4  that advocates for low-wage workers and the

          5  unemployed.

          6                 Nelp believes that when people move

          7  from welfare to work, they should receive the legal

          8  protections and the government support they need to

          9  get decent jobs.

         10                 That idea is also at the center of

         11  Transitional Jobs Program. Two years ago, in March

         12  2000, the City Council voted overwhelmingly to pass

         13  Local Law 14, establishing such a program and

         14  calling for the creation of 7,500 jobs over three

         15  years. That overwhelming support was reinforced when

         16  the Council overrode Mayor Giuliani's veto and made

         17  the Transitional Jobs Program the law of New York

         18  City.

         19                 Passing that law demonstrated great

         20  leadership by the Council. If Mayor Giuliani had

         21  been, and Mayor Bloomberg now was willing to follow

         22  the blueprint already laid out by the Council, and

         23  by that I mean simply willing to follow the law,

         24  much of the confusion and delay and frustration that

         25  we've been hearing about today could have been
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          2  avoided. Full implementation of Local Law 14 is also

          3  the goal of a pending class action lawsuit in which

          4  NELP represents people eligible for the program.

          5                 The basic formula of the Transitional

          6  Jobs Program is simple: You take people who haven't

          7  been able to obtain jobs on their own, you give them

          8  a stable year-long period when they can get back on

          9  their feet, you show them respect by asking them to

         10  do useful work for the community by giving them a

         11  paycheck and by treating them like any other worker,

         12  and you provide a set of supportive services so they

         13  can find and hold an unsubsidized job after the

         14  transitional period.

         15                 The Transitional Jobs Program

         16  provides an appropriate benchmark against which to

         17  evaluate the past, present and future programs in

         18  New York City.

         19                 Not only is it a carefully designed

         20  policy, but it offers a clear, publicly accessible

         21  framework that allows all interested parties to know

         22  their rights and responsibilities.

         23                 Using the Transitional Jobs Program

         24  as a benchmark, we can see what has been done well

         25  to date. First, thousands of jobs have been created,
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          2  most lasting roughly a year. Second, those jobs have

          3  been in real positions in City agencies doing

          4  invaluable work on behalf of the citizens of the

          5  City.

          6                 Third, workers have largely received

          7  their wages and benefits provided by applicable

          8  union contracts.

          9                 Using this benchmark, however, we can

         10  also see what has gone astray and what threatens to

         11  do so in the future.

         12                 Most importantly, the program is

         13  sometimes deemed to prioritize cutting the welfare

         14  rolls by dumping people in temporary jobs, rather

         15  than promoting long-term self-sufficiency.

         16                 At the extreme is what happened to

         17  workers in the Department of Transportation, who

         18  were suddenly terminated from their position halfway

         19  through the year, despite having failed to receive

         20  any training or job placement services.

         21                 Also troubling is the City's apparent

         22  emphasis for most in the parks, an immediate job

         23  search, rather than long-term enhancement of

         24  earnings potential, even with people for whom job

         25  search has failed for years.
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          2                 Looking to the future, it is critical

          3  that a City not back slide on wages, job tenure and

          4  placement in real jobs.

          5                 For instance, the Temp Force contract

          6  pushed through by the Giuliani Administration

          7  appears to be a scheme for contracting out public

          8  work to private temp agencies in order to evade

          9  union wage and job protection.

         10                 Indeed, the contract uses the fiction

         11  that these workers are "trainees" for an entire year

         12  and therefore are not protected by employment laws.

         13                 Finally, there have been indications

         14  that the City may jettison the principle of

         15  year-long jobs in favor of a shorter term revolving

         16  door approach.

         17                 Since the Council last acted, the

         18  rest of the country has marched forward with an

         19  ever-increasing number of programs implemented by

         20  states as different as Washington and Georgia,

         21  cities as different as Philadelphia and Jackson,

         22  Mississippi.

         23                 Notwithstanding the time already

         24  lost, the blueprint laid down by the Council remains

         25  more relevant than ever.
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          2                 Recently completed research has found

          3  that among participants who complete the

          4  Transitional Jobs Program elsewhere, over 80 percent

          5  go on to find unsubsidized work.

          6                 A study of Washington State's program

          7  found that participants subsequently earned 43

          8  percent more than they would have without the

          9  program.

         10                 In contrast, Washington's unpaid Work

         11  Experience or Work Fair Program yielded only a five

         12  percent increase in earnings.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Zatz, if you

         14  can sum up, please?

         15                 MR. ZATZ: I'm wrapping up.

         16                 As a result, the State eliminated

         17  workfare altogether.

         18                 Closing up here.

         19                 In closing, let me add a thought

         20  about the significance of the Council's activity in

         21  this area. I expect all of you want the Council to

         22  play a positive role in moving people from public

         23  assistance to a good job.

         24                 A positive role means not just asking

         25  hard questions, not just criticizing when things go

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            90

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  wrong, but also being willing and able to put forth

          3  your own program. What's at stake in implementation

          4  of the Transitional Jobs Program is not just the

          5  specifics of the policy, but also the much broader

          6  question of whether when the Council legislates, the

          7  City acts.

          8                 If the City could ignore the laws you

          9  pass, a positive role will be hard to find.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 MR. KLEIN: Thank you. Good morning.

         13  Again, my name is Mike Klein. I'm the Deputy

         14  Director of New Yorkers for Parks, and last year I

         15  was privileged to meet many of you as I served as

         16  Campaign Manager of Parks 2001.

         17                 I, too, want to thank Chairman

         18  DeBlasio and Addabbo for their leadership in

         19  convening this joint Committee of General Welfare

         20  and Parks.

         21                 We, at New Yorkers for Parks,

         22  consider it a natural, since parks are vital to the

         23  general welfare of our City.

         24                 Funding for 3,500 Parks Opportunity

         25  Program workers, 42 percent of the Department of
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          2  Parks and Recreation total workforce will be cut,

          3  according to Mayor Michael Bloomberg's Executive

          4  budget, with 70 percent already cut in the Parks

          5  Department's workforce over the last 30 years, and

          6  the threat of continued cuts as outlined in the

          7  Mayor's Preliminary and Contingency Plan, the

          8  elimination of POP funding is unacceptable.

          9                 We understand that the City is facing

         10  a fiscal crisis and has constraints; however, if

         11  these were implemented, the Department of Parks and

         12  Recreation would be sent reeling back to the

         13  seventies with graffiti, crime and unhealthy park

         14  and playground conditions rampant.

         15                 Today many of our parks already have

         16  broken drinking fountains, fields in disrepair, and

         17  paths that have safety hazards.

         18                 The disintegration of a full-time

         19  maintenance staff has forced the Department to rely

         20  upon POP, Work Experience Program and WEP and

         21  seasonal workers. The elimination of these workers

         22  will remove the last remaining pillar of strength

         23  and support. These workers are essential, not a

         24  frill.

         25                 I am not here today to argue about
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          2  the merits of these programs. I think those points

          3  have been made clear today. Rather, I am here on

          4  behalf of the more than 100,000 supporters of New

          5  Yorkers for Parks to tell you that parks will not be

          6  adequately maintained without these individuals.

          7  There is no doubt that these cuts will have a

          8  devastating effect on our park services, and I thank

          9  you, Chairman, for recognizing that today is Bring

         10  Your Children To Work Day, the tens of thousands of

         11  children that depend daily on the parks for their

         12  summer camps, for their day-to-day activity, will

         13  absolutely suffer, as trash piles up, needles from

         14  drug activity pile up, glass, from broken glass -

         15  you cannot touch the POP program.

         16                 Without these important workers,

         17  every public funded park will suffer.

         18                 On your way to work, during your

         19  weekend jog or when you are playing with your kids,

         20  you will see the parks sliding into disrepair.

         21                 Recently HRA and DPR began working on

         22  an agreement to continue the current program for one

         23  year only. This funding would be contingent on the

         24  DPR placing a significant number of the POP

         25  participants in full-time permanent employment.
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          2                 While we salute the goal of placing

          3  these participants in permanent well-paying

          4  employment, we are left wondering why the DPR would

          5  be the sole agency that must perform employment

          6  placement services to receive funding for

          7  fundamental and basic services that these workers

          8  perform.

          9                 The solution is simple: Provide DPR

         10  with adequate funding to train and hire full-time

         11  professional workers, such as POP graduates, give

         12  them a real career track and opportunity to the park

         13  system.

         14                 Second, use POP participants to

         15  augment service, rather than to supplant it.

         16                 Third, leave employment placement to

         17  the experts. Don't make the funding of essential

         18  workers dependent upon something the Parks

         19  Department is not the foremost expert on.

         20                 We call upon the City Council to

         21  recognize well maintained parks as vital to the

         22  quality of life in New York City.

         23                 Draw the line in the sand. Maintain

         24  and increase the Parks Department workforce by

         25  retaining POP workers and increasing the
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          2  Department's full-time professional maintenance

          3  staff.

          4                 Lastly, we call upon the Mayor to

          5  support the City Council in these efforts.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 Council Member Foster.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

         11                 Mr. Rosenthal, how are you?

         12                 MR. ROSENTHAL: How are you, Helen?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Question: Do

         14  the POPs workers, do they come through the Job

         15  Opportunity Program?

         16                 MR. ROSENTHAL: Yes, they do.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay. And, so,

         18  I guess the Deputy Commissioner wasn't totally

         19  accurate then, when he said the Temp Force, what's

         20  it? The Temp Force has nothing to do with POPs and

         21  that we were confusing the issue?

         22                 MR. ROSENTHAL: Well, the money dried

         23  up. $585 million was given to the Temp Force, that

         24  was federal funds that could have been used to

         25  provide jobs to welfare recipients, and the union
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          2  wants to know, the union wants to know, where does

          3  something, you know, other than the Mayor, decide to

          4  have a contract, not have hearings, use federal

          5  funds, use money that was intended to provide a

          6  living wage for public assistance welfare recipients

          7  to get real jobs and the union sees that there's no

          8  sense paying somebody to middle jobs, it's just

          9  plainly misery, and it's absolutely wrong that

         10  contracts should be broken and that money should be

         11  put into the pot to keep the workers working.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you. As

         13  the saying goes, you're preaching to the converted,

         14  but I just needed that to get out.

         15                 The second thing I have is, does DC

         16  37, or your division of DC 37, have any type of

         17  ongoing job training for the POP workers?

         18                 MR. ROSENTHAL: We had several

         19  meetings at DC 37, and some time in November,

         20  because of the September 11th tragedy, you know, we

         21  were displaced from our building and we had ongoing

         22  meetings, DC 37 would be willing to train the POP

         23  workers, use our facilities, rent educational spaces

         24  through the benefits that the City gives us and

         25  train them for GED, get them type writing
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          2  experience, clerical skills, whatever skills are

          3  necessary that the City sees in the future we would

          4  be willing to offer these services, and we would be

          5  Temp Force, and we're a non-profit organization, and

          6  they would still get the wage of $9.38.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

          8  Thank you. And thank you for your never-ending fight

          9  to make sure this gets proper attention.

         10                 MR. ROSENTHAL: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         12                 Council Member Seabrook.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chairman.

         15                 Just two quick questions: One is the

         16  cost of the contract that Temp Force-- was that a

         17  sole source contract?

         18                 MR. ROSENTHAL: I haven't seen the

         19  contract. I know one thing, that some time in the

         20  beginning of January I was notified by the Parks

         21  Department that the monies were going to end and

         22  there was a contract called Temp Force, and in the

         23  union we have tried to get information on the

         24  company, we haven't been able to find anybody. We

         25  don't know what -- we can't get information on the
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          2  company's records.

          3                 It seems to me, I think their issue

          4  is this: These are federal dollars, they were

          5  allocated for welfare reform, and allocated to take

          6  welfare recipients and look and give them job

          7  skills, training in a real job, and hopefully wean

          8  them off public assistance and the assistance of

          9  this grant and move them into the public and private

         10  sector.

         11                 Unfortunately, because of 9/11 we

         12  don't have any private sector jobs, and DC 37, when

         13  Lilian Robertson was here, we advocated a moratorium

         14  for the City residents and the state residents of

         15  New York City. We're in crisis here. There are no

         16  private sector jobs, the only jobs that are

         17  available are these public jobs and the money was

         18  given to a middle man. And they were told they have

         19  to work for less money. That's demeaning, it's not

         20  right, they wouldn't do it if they weren't

         21  minorities.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So, as of

         23  this date, to your knowledge there has not been any

         24  placement by Temp Force?

         25                 MR. ROSENTHAL: No. The Parks
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          2  Department reassured the union that they would not

          3  accept Temp Force, and if they did we would set up a

          4  picket line.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So, where

          6  are the people that Temp Force would be getting to

          7  -- where are they getting these people?

          8                 MR. ROSENTHAL: Well, let's explain

          9  this in a humanitarian way.

         10                 When a worker in my union finishes

         11  their 11 months and two weeks, they go back to HRA,

         12  they don't have Medicaid, they don't have benefits,

         13  they are told to go to unemployment.

         14                 The City -- sure, the City pays the

         15  unemployment, I don't see any savings. They could be

         16  working for that unemployment money.

         17                 Now, the majority of the workers that

         18  they placed were the most neediest people on the

         19  welfare works. Single parents, mainly women with

         20  children, three, four, five children. What happens

         21  when the paycheck stops and there's unemployment

         22  delay? Misery. Their family breaks down. The mother

         23  cries, the children cry, and I would say unstability

         24  in the family, which leads to other social ills.

         25  Children go hungry. It's totally unacceptable for
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          2  this City to allow that to happen.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 Mr. Chairman, I would hope that we

          6  would have the opportunity, and with Mr. Jackson, to

          7  investigate this contract, because I think it's a

          8  real crime against these people.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes, I'm sorry,

         10  and thank you for letting me just cut quickly in

         11  front of Council Member Barron. I just want to make

         12  my apologies to the Committee and those who are in

         13  attendance. I just got a call from the Police

         14  Department that the Apex Technical School in my

         15  district, there's been an explosion. So I need to

         16  leave and go there, because they think there have

         17  been extensive injuries and something to do with we

         18  believe the automobile training part of the school.

         19  So, I just didn't want you to think I was leaving

         20  because I was uninterested, I need to respond to

         21  this emergency, so I just wanted to put those

         22  regrets out.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         25                 It is important that we speak out
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          2  today for a very important program that in the past

          3  has worked, and it's good that we show this type of

          4  emotion to those who are visiting today. Today we

          5  are visited by the Delegation of the Peoples

          6  Republic of Vietnam and we have with us today Du Van

          7  Ti, Chairman of the Committee of Foreign Relations.

          8                 And I want to thank Council Member

          9  Charles Barron for bringing the Delegation here.

         10  Thank you very much.

         11                 We have a question from Council

         12  Member Jackson.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chair. And Council Member Larry Seabrook, as the

         15  Chair of the Contracts Committee, we will be looking

         16  into this Temp Force contract, and I know that,

         17  Mark, you will be giving us information on this

         18  particular contractor.

         19                 But I have a question for you as

         20  representatives and for the many members that were

         21  part of this program.

         22                 Do you believe that without the

         23  continuation of this program, will the people

         24  involved in this program have the opportunity to

         25  obtain the American dream?
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          2                 MR. ROSENTHAL: No, absolutely not.

          3                 I would say right now after the 9/11

          4  tragedy, no private sector jobs, and right now it's

          5  a necessity. We need to keep people working. We

          6  don't need to put people in the street, back into

          7  welfare hotels, through the system, it makes no

          8  sense. It's common sense to keep them working.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And I would

         10  like to ask that question of each one of the

         11  representatives.

         12                 Go ahead.

         13                 MR. KLEIN: I would add to that,

         14  Councilman, that not only will these workers, in

         15  particular, be denied access to that dream perhaps,

         16  but, in fact, the tens -- in fact, the millions of

         17  New Yorkers that they serve will, too, run up

         18  against obstacles of clean and safe environments for

         19  their children and their families to grow and play.

         20                 MR. ZATZ: Absolutely they will be

         21  denied the dream. I don't think I have anything to

         22  add to the eloquent statements made already.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Let me just

         24  ask then the other side of it.

         25                 With the continuation of this
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          2  program, will they have the opportunity to pursue

          3  the American dream? I ask all of you.

          4                 (Audience outburst.)

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Let me ask

          6  one or two more questions, Mr. Chair, if you don't

          7  mind.

          8                 Now, I see that there are hundreds of

          9  people in the audience that are yelling for us to

         10  save their jobs, and I ask you, what more can we do

         11  as a body, knowing that we're only part of the

         12  answer to this particular problem, what more can we

         13  do to help the other side of City Hall, the Office

         14  of the Mayor, Mike Bloomberg, in order to make this

         15  dream of attaining the American dream possible? I

         16  ask one of you that question?

         17                 MR. ROSENTHAL: Well, you need to set

         18  up a special committee, just address the

         19  transitional jobs, and the existing law, the monies

         20  frozen, the monies there, we need to enact it, and

         21  that money could be used to save the jobs. The money

         22  is there, it should be unfrozen, and we could

         23  immediately save the 3,000 park workers that we have

         24  now and then you need to set up a special committee

         25  and to fine-tune this program and make this program
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          2  work, because there's 80,000 other welfare

          3  recipients coming to the five-year limit, and you're

          4  going to have a calamity if we don't do something

          5  about it. It's compassionate, it's humanitarian,

          6  it's something that this City should be leading the

          7  country. We shouldn't be following, we should be

          8  leading.

          9                 MR. ZATZ: I would add to that that

         10  certainly one thing that could be done right off the

         11  bat is that the City should keep the promises it

         12  made to the workers in the Department of

         13  Transportation, and rehire them immediately so that

         14  they can complete the term that they were given.

         15                 And on the point of keeping

         16  commitments and promises, the Council should keep up

         17  the pressure and insist that the City implement the

         18  law on the books, the Transitional Jobs Program.

         19  Every day the City says to welfare recipients,

         20  follow the law, every detail, if you don't we're

         21  going to sanction you. So, why can't the City set a

         22  good example by following the law itself?

         23                 MR. KLEIN: Councilman, in answer to

         24  your question, the City Council can create or

         25  develop a standard or baseline of service, and as a
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          2  result, a baseline workforce that must be funded so

          3  that the discretionary judgment of only the Mayor's

          4  Office should not be the authority left alone to

          5  make these judgments year after year individually

          6  that has devastated a Parks Department and Parks

          7  workforce for 30 years.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair. Thank you, Council Member Jackson.

         10                 Under the leadership of Council

         11  Member Jackson on the Contracts Committee, as a

         12  member of that Committee, as well, I look forward to

         13  examining the Temp Force contract, as well.

         14                 Ladies and gentlemen, you have to

         15  understand, few committees are in this room that

         16  have so much passion with the topic and you've shown

         17  so much passion today and we appreciate that and we

         18  do hear you.

         19                 So, we are going, and, again, I

         20  believe that the Council should work with you,

         21  strengthen numbers, we should work with you to make

         22  sure that a working program that has worked in the

         23  past continues to work and that its participants

         24  continue to work as well, for the benefit of the

         25  workers, their families and the good work that you
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          2  do in and around our City, especially as I am

          3  considering, or am in consideration of our parks.

          4                 So, again, I thank you for the work

          5  that you do. Thank you very much for being here

          6  today, and I've got to thank my colleague, Bill

          7  DeBlasio, and the General Welfare Committee and

          8  their staff for helping us today as well.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council Member

         10  Foster.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you. I

         12  just want to say, this is something that was

         13  important to me, and that's why I introduced this,

         14  and I appreciate, Council, my chairpeople, for

         15  holding this hearing.  And continue to be as

         16  passionate as you are, and remember that this coming

         17  September and November is an election year, and let

         18  your voice be heard, not only in this Chamber, but

         19  through the ballot box, because people don't do to

         20  us what we don't allow them to do, and it's

         21  important, and when I came to Mr. Rosenthal, I said

         22  that I would fight on your behalf because I

         23  represent a district in the Bronx that many workers

         24  come from, and I want to see you working. I think

         25  it's important to empower people, and you empower
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          2  them by allowing them to work.

          3                 And I'm very disappointed that the

          4  Deputy Commissioner left, because he needed to hear

          5  the testimony and what was said today, because

          6  you're not here because you think it's a joke,

          7  you're here because you think it's important, and

          8  this Committee will be the advocates for you.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         11  Thank you, again, Helen Foster.

         12                 Let me just say, I want to thank

         13  everyone. I want to thank everyone who has joined us

         14  today. I want to thank everyone who spoke to us

         15  today and were witnesses. I want to especially say

         16  that so many courageous people have brought this

         17  issue to the forefront of the eyes of our City, and

         18  we appreciate that.

         19                 I think we also need to give a

         20  special thanks to someone who has been not only

         21  courageous on this issue, but courageous within the

         22  labor movement, and that's Mark Rosenthal, for

         23  everything he's done.

         24                 And the important thing going

         25  forward, and we all now have to be ambassadors for
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          2  this cause, we need to explain in New York City, and

          3  my clients' numbers really are devastating -- we

          4  need to explain to New York City that if we don't

          5  keep the Jobs Opportunity Program and the Parks

          6  Opportunity Program, our parks will suffer and our

          7  children will suffer, and we need to keep saying

          8  something very simple: The Administration appears to

          9  be, we couldn't get a very clear answer here, but

         10  they appear to be phasing out a very good program,

         11  there were 3,500 Parks Opportunity Workers, now it's

         12  down to 2,282, they appear to be phasing in a not

         13  very good program, a troubling program, the Temp

         14  Force program, there were zero, now we have about

         15  1,191. And, so, our concern today is to ask the

         16  Administration over and over the simple question,

         17  are we moving from a living wage short-term job that

         18  gives people opportunity, to a temp job with low

         19  wages? And if that's what we're doing, we better

         20  turn around and go back in the right direction.

         21                 Thank you very much, and the joint

         22  committee meeting is adjourned.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 12:10 p.m.)

         24
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